
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street  

Spartanburg, SC 
Monday, November 12, 2012 

 
I. Moment of Silence  
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
III. Approval of Minutes of the October 22, 2012 City Council Meeting  
 
IV. Approval of Agenda of the November 12, 2012 City Council Meeting 
 
 V.        Public Comment 
             *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk  
 
VI.        Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee Update 
              Presenter:  Laura Ringo, Executive Director 
                                 Gary Purington, Committee Member 
 
VII.       Ordinance 
 
              A. To Amend the Business License Provisions for Insurance Companies                 
 (First Reading) 
 Presenter:  Dennis Locke, Finance Director 
 
VIII.     Resolution 
 
              A.   Authorizing Certain Amendments to the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws 
 of Spartanburg Public Facilities Corporation; Providing for the Appointment of 
 the Members of the Board of Directors of Spartanburg Public Facilities 
 Corporation; and other Matters Relating Thereto  
 Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager     
               
IX.       Consent Agenda 
 
             A.   Ordinance Accepting the Property Owned by Achilles W. & Constantin W. 

Vaseliades, and being located at 212 Winfield Drive, and that portion of Winfield 
Drive abutting said property, as a part and parcel of the City of Spartanburg and 
Declaring said Property Annexed to and a part and Parcel of the City of 
Spartanburg, said parcel to be Zoned R-15, Single Family Residential upon 
Annexation (Second Reading) 

 Presenter:  Joshua T. Henderson, Planning Coordinator 

  

 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

CITY OF SPARTANBURG 
                                          SOUTH CAROLINA

As required by the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Spartanburg will provide interpretive services for the City Council 
Meetings. Requests must be made to the Communications & Marketing Office (596-2020) 24 hours in advance of the meeting. This is a Public 

Meeting and notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. 



  
  
  
  
  
  
            B.        To Amend Chapter 8, Garbage and Trash, to Reflect Current Language by   
         Replacing the Word “Sanitation” with the Words “Solid Waste,” by Replacing 
         the Words “Self-Loading Equipment,” and “Garbage Containers” with the   
         Words “Bulk Containers,: and to Make Other Changes to Reflect Current   
         Practices (Second Reading) 

            B.        To Amend Chapter 8, Garbage and Trash, to Reflect Current Language by   
         Replacing the Word “Sanitation” with the Words “Solid Waste,” by Replacing 
         the Words “Self-Loading Equipment,” and “Garbage Containers” with the   
         Words “Bulk Containers,: and to Make Other Changes to Reflect Current   
         Practices (Second Reading) 
                  Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager                  Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
 
  X.      Ordinances – Second Reading 
 
             A. Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Spartanburg 1988, Chapter 6, 
 “Elections,” Article II, “Districts,” Section 6-21 so as to Provide for Amendments 
 to the District Lines by Reason of the 2010 Census (Second Reading) 
 Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
 
             B. Ordinance to Amend the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina Zoning Ordinance, 
 by Amending Section 206, Changes to District Boundaries, Specifically Parcel 7-
 13-01-032.00,  Located on 1585 East Main Street, which is Currently Zoned LOD, 
 Limited Office District to Zone B-1, Neighborhood Shopping District; and 
 Providing for Severability and an Effective Date. Bill Akkary and His Agent, 
 Craig Jacobs of Spencer Hines Properties, on Behalf of National Bank of SC, 
 Owner. The Purpose for the Zone Change Application is to allow the Property to 
 be Sold for Use as a Restaurant (Second Reading) 
 Presenter:  Joshua Henderson, Planning Coordinator 
 
XI.        Other Business 
 
              A.    MWBE Annual Summary Report 
                       Presenter:  Jackie Wood, MWBE Coordinator 
 
              B.     Discussion of the Swim Center 
 Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager   
                                
XII.       City Council Updates  
 
XIII.     Executive Session to Receive Legal Advice Regarding a Contractual Matter  
 
XIV.     Adjournment 
 
 
 

* City Code Sec. 2-57. Citizen Appearance. Any citizen of the City of  Spartanburg may speak at a regular meeting on any matter 
pertaining to City Services and operations germane to items within the purview and authority of City Council, except personnel 
matters, by signing a Citizen’s Appearance form prior to the meeting stating the subject and purpose for speaking. No item 
considered by Council within the past twelve (12) months may be added as an agenda item other than by decision of City Council. 
The forms may be obtained from the Clerk and maintained by the same. Each person who gives notice may speak at the designated 
time an  will be limited to a two (2) minute presentation. ted to a two (2) minute presentation. d

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 
City Council Agenda 

Page Two –November 12, 2012 



 
III.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  
 



 
City Council Meeting  

County Council Chambers 
366 South Church Street 

Spartanburg, SC 
Monday, October 22, 2012 

 
(These minutes are subject to approval at the  

November 12, 2012 City Council meeting.) 
 

City Council met this date with the following members present: Mayor Junie White, Mayor 
pro tem Cate Ryba, Councilmembers Linda Dogan, Jerome Rice, Robert Reeder, Sterling 
Anderson, and Jan Scalisi. City Manager Ed Memmott and City Attorney Cathy McCabe 
were also in attendance. Notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in 
advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. All City Council meetings are 
recorded for a complete transcript. 

 
I. Moment of Silence - observed 
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance – Girl Scouts from Troop 13, Central United Methodist Church, 

Ballenger and Madison Cooksey lead everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
III. Approval of Minutes of the October 8, 2012 City Council Meeting –  
  Councilmember Dogan made a motion to approve the minutes as received.     
  Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0.  
 
IV. Approval of Agenda of the October 22, 2012 City Council Meeting –  
            Mayor pro tem Ryba made a motion to approve the agenda as received.       
  Councilmember Dogan seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
 V.        Public Comment - none 
             *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk  
 
VI.        Ordinance 
             A.   Ordinance Accepting the Property Owned by Achilles W. & Constantin W. 

Vaseliades, and being located at 212 Winfield Drive, and that portion of 
Winfield Drive abutting said property, as a part and parcel of the City of 
Spartanburg and Declaring said Property Annexed to and a part and Parcel 
of the City of Spartanburg, said parcel to be Zoned R-15, Single Family 
Residential upon Annexation (First Reading) 

 Presenter:  Joshua T. Henderson, Planning Coordinator 
 Mr. Henderson presented the item to City Council as follows: 
  “Staff received a request from Achilles W. & Constantin W. Vaseliades, owners  
  of 212 Winfield Drive for annexation of the property into the City of Spartanburg.  
  Because the property will be zoned R-15, Single Family Residential upon   

 1  



  Annexation, there is no need to obtain zoning designation by the Planning   
  Commission. 
  Additionally, said parcel is located in the Hillbrook Forest Subdivision.  However, 
  since it is not contiguous to properties already annexed (Hillbrook Phase I, Phase  
  II, and Phase III), but is contiguous to the City limits, the property owner has  
  submitted an annexation petition under the 100 percent Petition and Ordinance  
  method.  
  Staff recommends that the City Council take the following actions: 

  a)  Approve the annexation of 212 Winfield Drive (TMS7-10-13-026.00). 
  b)  Designate the zoning for this property as R-15 (Single Family Residential)   
                   upon annexation. 

  BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA: The parcel will generate property tax after  
  annexation.  Additional service costs will be minimal.” 
  Councilmember Scalisi made a motion to approve the annexation request as  
  presented on first reading. Councilmember Rice seconded the motion, which  
  carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
  
VII.      Other Business    
             A. Approval to Purchase Crime Analyst/GIS Software Upgrade 
 Presenter:  Major Steve Lamb, Public Safety Department  
 Major Lamb presented the item to City Council as follows: 
  “During the early 90’s, law enforcement agencies began geographically tracking  
  criminal activity. This new concept utilized a system called GIS (Geographic  
  Information System). This process allowed law enforcement agencies to plot  
  criminal activity on mapping software. This new program gave officers the ability 
  to visually see crime data displayed on a topographic map and possibly predict  
  future criminal activity. This system also allowed officers to view crime analyst  
  statistics and share this with the community they serve. Over time, these law  
  enforcement GIS systems have evolved to capture data that is necessary for  
  implementation of “intelligent lead policing” models. This concept uses advanced 
  GIS software to analyze millions of pieces of data and arrange useful real-time  
  information for officers in the field.    
  The Public Safety Department began its Crime Analyst/GIS program in the early  
  1990’s. In the beginning, our agency formed a partnership with Bradshaw   
  Consulting Services Inc. They are a leading Law Enforcement GIS developer and  
  have provided advanced software and technical support to our agency for over a  
  decade. Our GIS program quickly moved to a fulltime civilian position and has  
  had countless success stories. However, because of the massive amounts of data  
  and the rapid advancements in technology, our GIS system needs a software  
  upgrade and additional data storage devices. This upgrade will move from one  
  department computer to every department computer having access to our   
  GIS/Crime Analyst tools. This will allow officers in the field to research and  
  receive real-time crime data. This improvement will also allow citizens the ability 
  to research accurate crime data through our website.   
 

 2  



  For several months, the department has worked with Bradshaw Consulting  
  Services to develop a systems upgrade plan. The current system will need several  
  large software enhancements as well as two new data storage devices.    

 
  Company  Price 

Bradshaw Consulting (sole Source) $28,629
Dell (State Contract) $13,284

Total $41,913

  
 
 
 

  The Public Safety Department requests approval to purchase a Crime Analyst/  
  GIS Software Upgrade and enhancements from Bradshaw Consulting Services  
  Inc.  
  BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:  This project will be funded through the 2009  
  Recovery Act JAG Program. (MG0135).  After one year, the City of Spartanburg  
  will be responsible for an annual maintenance fee of approximately $11,788.”  
 Councilmember Dogan made a motion to approve the award of bid to Bradshaw 

Consulting in the amount of $28,629 and Dell in the amount of $13,284 for the 
Crime Analyst/GIS Software Upgrade as requested. Councilmember Reeder 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

        
             B. Approval of 2013 City Council Meeting Schedule 
                        Presenter:  Connie McIntyre, City Clerk 
 Ms. McIntyre presented the item to City Council as follows: 
  “City Council establishes the meeting schedule for the upcoming year near the  
  end of each calendar year. 
  Staff requests approval of the 2013 City Council meeting schedule.” 
  Ms. McIntyre noted that there would be only one council meeting in March due to 
  a conflict with the National League of Cities Congressional Cities Conference,  
  and three meetings in April to compensate for that. She also mentioned that the  
  second meeting in May would be on Tuesday due to the Memorial Day holiday. 
  Mayor pro tem Ryba made a motion to approve the 2013 City Council calendar  
  as requested. Councilmember Dogan seconded the motion, which carried   
  unanimously 7 to 0. 
   
VIII.   Consent Agenda 
               A.   Ordinance to Amend the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina Zoning  
  Ordinance, by Amending Section 206, Changes to District Boundaries,  
  Specifically Parcels #7-12-02-096.00, 049.00, 048.00, and 079.00; 7-08-14- 
  038.00, 7-12-01-327.00, and 7-12-02-050.00; as well as, Cleaning Up the  
  Zoning of Twelve (12) parcels on #7-12-02-310.00 – Located on Evins Street,  
  Jefferson Street, McDowell Street, Cummings Street (School), North Church  
  Street, Swain  Street, Littlejohn Court, Edgewood Avenue, Simmons Alley,  
  and Charlevoix Street which are Currently Zoned R-6 (General Residential  
  District), B-3  (General Business District), LOD (Limited Office District), R-8 
  (General Residential District), and B-1 (Neighborhood Shopping District) to  
  Zone GID (General Institutional   District).  Woody Willard, Willard, Inc.,  

 3  



  on Behalf of Jason H. Burr, Associate Vice President of Facilities & Capital  
  Projects, Wofford College, Owner (Second Reading) 
                         Presenter:  Joshua T. Henderson, Planning Coordinator 
         Councilmember Dogan made a motion to approve the consent agenda on   
         second reading. Councilmember Reeder seconded the motion, which carried   
         unanimously 7 to 0.” 
 
IX.        Public Hearings 
              A. Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Spartanburg 1988, Chapter 6, 
 “Elections,” Article II, “Districts,” Section 6-21 so as to Provide for 
 Amendments  to the District Lines by Reason of the 2010 Census (First 
 Reading) 
 Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
 Mr. Memmott presented the item to City Council as follows:  
  “Council has been briefed on the need to approve Council voting districts based  
  on the 2010 Census.  The State Budget and Control Board – Office of Research  
  and Statistics has provided technical assistance to the City in this matter and has  
  developed 5 sample redistricting plans for Council’s consideration.   
  Staff is requesting the following actions by Council: 

1. Adoption of 2012 redistricting plan criteria as recommended by the State Budget 
and Control Board.  These criteria include (a) adherence to the 1965 Voting 
Rights Act as amended and controlling court decisions; (b) ensure that parts of 
districts established are contiguous; (c) respect Communities of Interest; (d) 
attempt to maintain constituent consistency; (e) solicit public input; (f) avoid 
splitting voting precincts if possible. 

      2. Adoption of Council Redistricting public hearing procedures. Staff is 
recommending the following procedures: (a) a 60 minute time limit for the public 
hearing; (b) a 5 minute time limit for each speaker; (c) require each speaker to 
provide their name and address; (d) provide additional time for individual speaker 
by majority vote of Council; (e) designate the City Clerk serves as time keeper; (f) 
designate the City Clerk to advise the Mayor when either the 5 minute or 60 
minute time limit has expired; (g) stipulate that no attempt will be made to 
respond to any question during the public hearing; (h) stipulate that the 60 minute 
hearing time limit may be extended by a majority vote of Council.   

      3. Receive report and overview of the sample plans from Mr. Bowers.  
      4. Conduct public hearing. 

5. Select a Council redistricting plan and give first reading approval of an Ordinance 
to establish the 2012 Council districts.” 

 
 Mayor White called for a motion to accept the 2012 redistricting plan criteria as 
 recommended by the State Budget and Control Board. Councilmember Scalisi 

made the motion, Councilmember Anderson seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously 7 to 0. 

 Mayor White called for a motion to adopt the suggested redistricting public 
hearing procedures. Councilmember Dogan made the motion, Councilmember 
Rice seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

 4  



 Mr. Memmott introduced Bobby Bowers, with the State Budget and Control 
Board – Office of Research and Statistics for an explanation of the various 
suggested redistricting plans. Mr. Bowers explained the process required by the 
Department of Justice after each census in redrawing district lines to maintain the 
required criteria. He reviewed five different plans of redrawn city council districts 
for council’s consideration and vote. 

 Mayor White opened the Public Hearing, reviewing the rules with the 
attendees. 

 1.  Linda Bilanchone, 182 West Hampton Heights, stated that she would     
           speak in favor or Plan 4, which would keep her neighborhood as a unified  
           geographic area for the most part. 
 2.  Jessie Ruth Littlejohn, President of the South Converse Neighborhood    
           Association, 284 Marion Avenue, stated she would be in favor of Plan 3 since  
           it would have less negative impact on both neighborhoods. 
      3.  David Stokes, 203 W. Hampton Avenue, stated that both he and his wife  
           would be in favor of Plan 4 or 5, which they felt would be in Hampton Heights  
           best interest to keep the neighborhood mostly intact and would maintain the  
           local historic district that is overlaid in that neighborhood. 
      4.  Brenda Lee Price, 291 Alexander Avenue, stated she was in favor of the Plan  
           3 that kept South Church Street intact. 
      5.  Phillip Stone, 246 S. Spring Street, stated that from the perspective of  
           maintaining neighborhood integrity he would support Plan 4 as it would bring  
           the Local Historic Hampton Heights Neighborhood and the potentially historic  
           South Converse Neighborhood together. 

  6.  Harold Mitchell, 412 Shaw Avenue, stated that he supported Plan 3. 
  7.  Tammy Stokes, 203 W. Hampton Avenue, asked that Council seek to do  
       whatever was necessary to keep the neighborhoods together. 
  Councilmember Dogan made a motion to close the public hearing. Mayor pro  
  tem Ryba seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
  Discussion was held among council regarding the various plans. 
  Councilmember Rice made a motion to accept Plan 3 as proposed by Mr.   
  Bowers. Councilmember Reeder seconded the motion. 

Mayor White called for the vote. The vote was 4 to 3 in favor of redistricting Plan 
 3. Councilmembers Rice, Dogan, Reeder and Mayor White voted in favor of 
 redistricting Plan 3. Councilmembers Scalisi, Ryba  and Anderson voted against 
 redistricting Plan 3. 

 
              B. Appeal of Planning Commission’s Denial to Amend the Zoning Ordinance of 
 the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina  and Comprehensive Plan Land Use 
 Element, by Amending Section 206, Changes to District Boundaries, 
 Specifically Parcel #7-13-01-032.00 – Located on 1585 East Main Street, 
 Which is Currently Zoned LOD with a Land Use Designation of 
 Neighborhood Shopping District; and Providing for Severability and an 
 Effective Date (First Reading)   
 Presenters:  Joshua T. Henderson, Planning Coordinator 
           Cathy H. McCabe, City Attorney 

 5  



           Koger Bradford, Esquire, Representing the Property Owner 
 Attorney Koger Bradford, representing NBSC, presented testimony in favor of   
 the rezoning and requesting that council overturn the Planning Commission’s 
 denial of the rezoning request. He called witnesses Fred Willis, City 
 Executive for NBSC, Craig Jacobs of Spencer Hines Properties, representing 
 the potential buyer Bill Akkary, and Bill Akkary, the potential buyer who 
 presented the aforementioned testimony. 
 
 Mayor White opened the Public Hearing. 
 Lisa Allen, 1020 Eastwood Drive, came forward to speak against the rezoning. 
 Jack Lawrence, Riverview Drive, came forward to speak against the rezoning. 
 Eddie Payne, 1025 Eastwood Drive, came forward to speak against the rezoning. 
 Frank Hall, 228 Roberts Meadow, spoke in favor of the rezoning. 
 Scott Talley, does not live in the City, but has a business in the City, spoke 
 against the rezoning. 
 Chris Thompson, landscape architect who owns a business in downtown 
 Spartanburg, and creator of the proposed landscape plan for the proposed buyer 
 of the property, spoke in favor of the rezoning. 
 Robbie Romeiser, 200 Lakewood Drive, spoke in favor of the rezoning. 
 David Strickland, 324 Rainbow Circle, Inman, SC, real estate agent for 
 Spencer Hines Realty, spoke in favor of the rezoning. 
  Mr. Bradford thanked Council for hearing the request of the current owner 
 and the proposed purchaser. 
 Scott Harris, listing agent for the property, spoke in favor of the rezoning. 
 
 Councilmember Dogan made a motion to close the Public Hearing. 
 Councilmember Reeder seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 
 0. 
  
 Councilmember Dogan made a motion to “appeal the Planning Commission’s 
 decision and rezone this on first reading”. Councilmember Reeder seconded the 
 motion. 
 Councilmember Scalisi expressed her opinion on the issue, suggesting that a 
 compromise might still be possible.  
 Mayor pro tem Ryba agreed that the parties were very close to a compromise. 
 Councilmember Anderson stated that he had a similar issue in his district and the 
 parties came together and reached a compromise. He stated that there were a lot 
 or other options on the table before coming before Council and that Council had 
 no choice but to make a decision. 
 Councilmember Reeder stated that he was sorry that the parties could not come 
 to an agreement even with the proposed buyer offering numerous buffers and 
 other options. 
 Mayor White called for the vote. The vote was 6 to 1 with Councilmember Scalisi   
 voting against the motion. 
 
                        

 6  



    X.     City Council Updates – postponed due to the late hour.  
 

 7  

   XI.      Adjournment – Councilmember Dogan made a motion to adjourn the meeting.   
   Mayor pro tem Ryba seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0 and   
   the meeting adjourned at 8:39 p.m. 
 
 
 
              Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

VII. A 

  
 



    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
TO:   Ed Memmott, City Manager   
 
FROM:  Dennis R. Locke, Finance Director 
      
SUBJECT:  Amendment of Business License Ordinance Provisions 
  For Insurance Companies 
 
DATE:  November 7, 2012 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
As a result of legislation passed in the 2012 session of the South Carolina General Assembly, all cities must 
immediately amend their business license ordinance for insurance companies and non-admitted insurance 
brokers. Cities must also renew their agreement with the Municipal Association of South Carolina to 
collect these taxes on their behalf. 
 
The state legislation was necessary and supported by cities and towns because of a recent change in federal 
law known as the “Dodd-Frank” Act. Within the Act is a provision, The Non-admitted and Reinsurance 
Reform Act of 2012, which states that the “placement of non-admitted insurance is subject to the statutory 
and regulatory requirements solely of the insured’s home state. “It goes further to state only the “home 
state” may require the payment of premium tax for non-admitted insurance. 
 
In response to this change in federal law, on June 29, 2012, Governor Nikki Haley signed into law 
legislation that designates a single tax rate of 6 percent for the broker’s premium tax in South Carolina. The 
new state law fully complies with the new federal regulations while preserving the designation and 
collection of a 4 percent state tax and a 2 percent municipal broker’s premium tax. The law further states 
that a municipality may not impose any additional license fee or tax based upon a percentage of premium. 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: In order to comply with state law, MASC has provided us an amendment to our 
Business License Ordinance that must be approved as it is currently written. 
 
 
BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:  According to MASC there is the potential to lose a small amount of 
revenue due to those changes. 
 
 



AN ORDINANCE 
Amending the Business License Ordinance  

Provisions for Insurance Companies 
 
WHEREAS, the South Carolina General Assembly, in order to ensure consistency with the 
federal Non-admitted and Reinsurance Reform Act of 2010 (“NRRA”), ratified an act (Rat# 283) 
on June 28, 2012, amending S. C. Code §§ 38-7-160 and 38-45-10 through 38-45-195; and 
 
WHEREAS, the act establishes a blended broker’s premium tax rate of 6 percent comprised of 
a 4 percent state broker’s premium tax and a 2 percent municipal broker’s premium tax; and  
 
WHEREAS, the act states a municipality may not impose on brokers of non-admitted insurance in 
South Carolina an additional license fee or tax based upon a percentage of premiums; and  
 
WHEREAS, the act authorizes the Municipal Association of South Carolina to act as the 
municipal agent for purposes of distributing to municipalities the municipal brokers tax collected 
by the South Carolina Department of Insurance; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the Business License Ordinance to conform to the State 
law as amended; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City/Town of 
Spartanburg, that the Business License Ordinance is amended by changing the provisions for 
insurance companies as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. 
 
SIC NAICS 

CODE or CODE 

63 5241 Insurance Companies:  Except as to fire insurance, “gross premiums” 
means gross premiums written for policies for property or a risk located 
within the municipality. In addition, “gross premiums” shall include premiums 
written for policies that are sold, solicited, negotiated, taken, transmitted, 
received, delivered, applied for, produced or serviced by (1) the insurance 
company’s office located in the municipality, (2) the insurance company’s 
employee conducting business within the municipality, or (3) the office of the 
insurance company’s licensed or appointed producer (agent) conducting 
business within the municipality, regardless of where the property or risk is 
located, provided no tax has been paid to another municipality in which the 
property or risk is located based on the same premium. 

Solicitation for insurance, receiving or transmitting an application or policy, 
examination of a risk, collection or transmitting of a premium, adjusting a 
claim, delivering a benefit, or doing any act in connection with a policy or 
claim shall constitute conducting business within the municipality, regardless 
of whether or not an office is maintained in the municipality.   

As to fire insurance, “gross premiums” means gross premiums (1) collected 
in the municipality, and/or (2) realized from risks located within the limits of 
the municipality. 

 Revised 9/2012 



 Revised 9/2012 

Gross premiums shall include all business conducted in the prior calendar 
year. 

Gross premiums shall include new and renewal business without deductions 
for any dividend, credit, return premiums or deposit. 

Declining rates shall not apply. 
 

631-632 52411  Life, Health and Accident ...................................... 0.75% of Gross Premiums 
 
633-635 524126 Fire and Casualty ........................................................ 2% of Gross Premiums 
 
636  524127 Title Insurance ........................................................... 2% of Gross Premiums 

 
 

SECTION 2. 
 
Notwithstanding any other provisions of this ordinance, license taxes for insurance companies 
shall be payable on or before May 31 in each year without penalty.  The penalty for delinquent 
payments shall be 5% of the tax due per month, or portion thereof, after the due date until paid. 
 
SECTION 3. 
 
Any exemptions in the business license ordinance for income from business in interstate 
commerce are hereby repealed.  Gross income from interstate commerce shall be included in 
the gross income for every business subject to a business license tax. 
 
SECTION 4. 
 
Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. §§ 38-45-10 and 38-45-60, the Municipal Association of South 
Carolina is designated the municipal agent for purposes of administration of the municipal 
broker’s premium tax. The agreement with the Association for administration and collection of 
current and delinquent license taxes from insurance companies as authorized by S.C. Code § 5-
7-300 and administration of the municipal broker’s premium tax in the form attached hereto is 
approved, and the Mayor is authorized to execute it.   
 
All ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
This ordinance shall be effective on the date of final reading. 
 
 
              

Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
              

Clerk 
 
First reading:      
 
 
Final reading:      



 
 

VIII. A  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



      REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council     
  
FROM: Ed Memmott, City Manager  
      
SUBJECT: Resolution to Amend the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Spartanburg 

Public Facilities Corporation  
 
DATE: November 7, 2012  
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
In January 2011, City Council approved a Development Agreement between the City and Spartanburg 
Community College (“SCC”) for the Evans Building project.  SCC has purchased the former Evans High 
School Building from Spartanburg County and is renovating the building for its use.  Staff believes the 
Evans Building project is another momentum builder for our downtown.  The SCC facility will bring two 
year associate degree and four year college transfer students to the City.  In addition to its regular course 
offerings, numerous non-credit and certificate courses will be offered from this location.  Most importantly, 
the SCC project will provide convenient access to City residents who want to take advantage of the 
educational and job training opportunities. Mr. Samuel Hook, Director of the SCC Foundation, will attend 
the November 12 Council meeting and update Council in more detail on the status of this project.        
 
SCC is pursuing a financing structure for this project that is similar to the financing structure the City 
utilized for the CC Woodson Community Center, Saint John Street Garage, and the Downtown Airport 
terminal to take advantage of the federal New Markets Tax Credit (“NMTC”) program.  While use of the 
NMTC program offers significant financial advantages, the legal and financing structure required to 
comply with various program requirements can get very complicated.  In this instance, the financing 
structure would benefit from the participation of an independent nonprofit organization which is not 
affiliated with other entities involved in the project.   
 
The Spartanburg Public Facilities Corporation (“SPFC”) is a nonprofit corporation that was established by 
the City to solely assist with financing of the conference center at the Marriott Hotel.  After review, the 
City’s bond counsel (McNair Firm) determined that the SPFC could participate and facilitate SCC’s 
financing provided that certain amendments of the SPFC’s Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws were 
approved.  
 
If approved by Council, the Resolution would:   
 

1. Allow the Articles of Incorporation to be amended to make clear that the corporation can undertake 
broader activities than just assisting with the financing of the conference center at Renaissance 
Park; 

 



2. Allow  the bylaws to be updated to permit the same, as well as reflect that the office of Deputy City 
Manager doesn’t exist anymore (and accordingly isn’t an ex-officio member of the Board of 
Directors); and  

 
3. Authorize the City Manager to undertake any other actions on behalf of the City, as sole member of 

the corporation, to advance the purposes of the Resolution.  
     
The SPFC’s participation in the SCC project financing would not extend any financial risk to either the 
City or the SPFC.   
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:   
 
Council approval of the Resolution to make amendments to the SPFC Articles of Incorporation and 
Bylaws.    
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA: N/A  
 
 
 
 























 

X. A  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



 AN ORDINANCE 
 3 

TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
SPARTANBURG 1988, CHAPTER 6, “ELECTIONS,” 
ARTICLE II, “DISTRICTS,” SECTION 6-21 SO AS 
TO PROVIDE FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE 
DISTRICT LINES BY REASON OF THE 2010 
CENSUS. 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Members of Council of the City of Spartanburg, 

South Carolina, in Council assembled: 

Section 1. To amend Chapter 6, “ELECTIONS,” ARTICLE II, “DISTRICTS,” 

Section 6-21, “Created; described” by deleting subsection (b) in its entirety and inserting in lieu 

thereof the following: 

 Sec. 6-21. Created; depicted. 
 

(b) The districts are identified on the map labeled “City of Spartanburg 
      Plan 3” with an accompanying statistical table showing the   
      apportionment of population attached hereto. 
 
 

Section 2. This Ordinance shall become effective upon the passage after second 

reading by Council and on receipt of written notice by the Justice Department of the United 

States of America not to challenge the ordinance. 

 DONE AND RATIFIED this              day of                                , 2012. 
 
 
       ____________________________________  
     MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________         /        /             1st Reading 
CITY CLERK 
            /        /             2nd Reading 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 



4

2

1

6

3
5

I 26

I 85
 BUS

I 85

S 8
8T

H

S P
IN

E S
T

I 5
85

S 4
7T

H

S 31ST

E M
AIN

 ST

S 7
8T

H

UNION ST

S 5
90

TH

S 525TH

SO
UT

HP
OR

T R
D

S 489TH

S 748TH

CA
NA

AN
 R

D

N 
PI

NE
 ST

S 6
5T

H

W 
O 

EZ
EL

L B
LV

D

S CHURCH ST EXD

FL
OYD

 RD

S 804TH

ARCHER RD

S 1
55

7T
H

S 1
55

0T
H

ZION HILL 
RD

DA
IR

Y R
ID

GE
 R

D

WINGO RD

CHES
NEE HIGHWAY

S 19
1S

T

S 605TH

S 206TH

S 494TH

GRAH
AM

 RD

S CHURCH ST

UN
IVE

RS
ITY

 W
AY

PO
LIC

E 
CL

UB
 R

D

WO
OD

BU
RN

 R
D

S 651ST

S 79TH

S 546TH

E M
AIN

 ST
 EX

D

W 
MA

IN
 ST

AS
HE

VIL
LE

 HI
GH

WA
Y

KE
LT

NE
R A

VE

PATCH DR

LA
ND

ER
S R

D

AN
ITA

 DR

S 2
3R

D

KE
LLY

 RD

JO
HN

 B
 W

HI
TE

 SR
 B

LV
D

BRICE RD

S 6
24

TH

BOILING SPRINGS RD

W CR
OFT

 CI
R

OL
D 

GR
EE

NV
ILL

E R
D

LUCERNE DR

AIR
PO

RT
 R

D

TE
XTIL

E RD
WO

FF
OR

D 
ST

MAR
Y B

LA
CK R

AIL
 TR

L

COLLINS AVE

OL
D 

CA
NA

AN
 RD

HA
RR

EL
L D

R

FR
ON

TA
GE

 R
D

FO
X D

R

HOWARD ST

HOLLY DR

SA
XO

N 
AV

E

MAG
NES

S D
R

STATE HIGHWAY 56

CO
TT

ON
 D

R

E BLACKSTOCK RD

ST
EW

AR
T R

D

AV
ON

 D
R

S 124TH

FA
RL

EY
 AV

E

FAIRLANE DR

RE
ID

VI
LL

E 
RD

S 452ND

S 250TH

BE
AU

MONT A
VE

N CHURCH ST

MARION AVE

DR
AY

TO
N 

RD

BA
RN

WE
LL

 R
D

PH
ILL

IP
S 

RD

TUCKER RD

WILLIAMS ST

DUNCAN
 ST

BL
AN

CHAR
D RD

S 44TH
SE

MI
NO

LE
 D

R
S 96TH

HIGH ST

FLOYD ST

CAMELOT DR

BR
ISA

CK
 RD

MA
RY

LA
ND

 AV
E

VIA
DU

CT
 R

D
PL

AI
NV

IE
W

 D
R

W BLACKSTOCK RD

CEDAR SPRINGS RD

S 1573RD

E P
AR

K D
R

VALLEY FALLS RD

S 1
26

TH

MILLS AVE

HA
YN

E S
T

CA
RN

EY
 ST

S 400TH

S 613TH

S FOREST ST

HEYWOOD AVE

MAGNOLIA
 ST NO

RT
H S

T

OAK ST

BE
AR

DE
N R

D

CAROLIN
A DR

VA
ND

ER
BIL

T R
D

SOUTH AVE

ARCH ST

N PARK DR

ET
HEL

 RD

MCABEE RD

SU
ND

YA
L D

R

OAK GROVE RD

DO
VE

R 
RD

DA
LE

 ST

IR
ON

 O
RE

 R
D

S 9
37

TH

AMMONS RD

DE
LM

AR
 R

D

S 906TH

EX
T

WI
LL

IS
 R

D

SAINT JAMES DR

AR
CA

DI
A S

T

W PARK DR

SL
OA

N S
T

WY
AT

T R
D

SU
NB

EA
M 

RD

OAKTREE RD

HO
LL

IS 
DR

ACCESS RD

HODGE DR

W CEN
TE

NNIAL
 ST

S C
EN

TE
R 

ST

NAS
H RD

N FOREST ST

EDGECOMBE RD

S BLACKSTOCK RD

BRAWLE
Y ST

DA
KO

TA
 ST

MIDWAY DR

BU
RN

ET
T S

T

SIBLEY ST

HEATHER DR

DIL
LO

N C
IR

CONNECTICUT AVE

OT
IS 

BL
VD

S 2ND

S SPRING ST

S 8
51S

T

SA
RA

NA
C 

DR

WORDEN DR

WESTSIDE RD

IVY
 ST

CH
EL

SE
A S

T

SCHIRRA CT

E W
OO

D 
ST

S 8
25

TH

WHIT
NE

Y R
D

NE
BO

 S
T

ALEXANDER AVE

PR
INC

E S
T

OLD
 FA

RM
 RD

OVERLAND DR

S 545TH

FLOYD RD EXD

N DEAN ST

GLENN RD

HU
NT

 S
T

MA
XIN

E S
T

JE
NN

IN
GS

 ST

BETHLEHEM CHURCH RD

BELTON DR

SY
DN

OR
 R

D

JA
CK

SO
N S

T

MOCKINGBIRD LN

LONGBOW DR

BURDETTE ST

PARTRIDGE RD

E H
EN

RY
 S

T

EA
ST

WAY
 DR

EV
IN

S 
ST

SPRUCE ST

PO
PL

AR
 ST

FOXHALL R
D

LO
NE

 O
AK

 ST

ID
LE

WO
OD

 C
IR

SARATO
GA DR

S 9
39

TH

HILLBROOK DR

EPTON ST

AS
H 

ST

OAK FOREST RD

CHURCH ST

S 138TH

LINCOLN DR

EL
M 

ST

CE
DA

R 
SP

RI
NG

S A
VE

WHITL
OCK ST

CASE AV
E

SH
EL

TO
N 

DR

RI
CE

 R
D

CL
AY

TO
N 

RD

AN
SE

L S
T

ST
AF

FO
RD AV

E

AL
AM

O ST

AVANT ST

WE
BB

 D
R

S 595TH

N FAIRVIEW AVE

N C
AM

PU
S B

LV
D

FO
ST

ER
 ST

S 596TH

WILD
WOO

D L
N

BOYD ST

N LANFORD RD

STEPHEN GROVE RD

DEXTER RD

DA
VID

 D
R

E D
AN

IEL
 M

OR
GA

N A
VE

OL
D C

HA
RL

OT
TE

 RD

CROFT STAT
E PARK RD

CL
EV

EL
AN

D 
ST

S 855TH

MU
ST

AN
G 

DR

HILL
SID

E D
R

HE
MLO

CK
 DR

LURAY ST

CA
LIF

ORN
IA 

AV
E

MCCRAVY DR

AL
ICE

 ST

CORNELIUS RD

HO
US

TO
N S

T

AUSTIN ST

CHERRY HILL
 RD

MAID MARION LN

OL
D H

OW
AR

D G
AP

 RD

1S
T A

VE

GO
WA

N 
ST

CREST CIR

WINSMITH AVE

LIN
VILL

E D
R

GARRETT RD

CONVAIR DR

FRANKLIN AVE

SERVICE DR

PA
TR

IC
IA 

DR

EL
 PA

SO
 ST

BE
EC

HWOOD DR

LO
WN

DE
S D

R

LOCUST GROVE

FR
AN

KL
IN ST

OL
IVA

 D
R

BURNETT DR

S 564TH

CL
EV

EL
AN

D 
CH

AP
EL

 R
D

ROYA
L O

AK
 DR

EA
RL D

R

BOMAR AVE

PINE RIDGE RD

OAKLAND AVE

WOO
DL

AN
D S

T

SC
OT

T S
T

LO
RING ST

S 314TH

S 6
88T

H

OVERHILL DR

BROADCAST DR

WINDING WAY

GE
NT

RY
 ST

CONRAD DR

TA
MA

RA
 W

AY

DOVE HILL RD

SHOREHAM DR

RID
GE

WAY
 AV

E

SID
NE

Y S
T

DO
GW

OO
D C

LU
B R

D

WO
OD

RU
FF

 LN

SPRING ST

S 683RD

THOMAS RD

WES
T S

T

HIGHVIEW RD

BO
RM

AN
 D

R

DAIRY RD

SE
QU

OIA 
DR

EDISTO DR

STRICKLAND DR

NOB HILL RD

DU
NB

AR
 ST

FU
LL

ER
 R

D

FLOY ST

PO
ND

 ST

MI
LL

IKE
N 

AV
E

CR
OM

ER
 ST

NO
TT

 ST

S 6
95

TH

MC
GE

E S
T

TERRACE RD

MILL
ER LINE

SIM
S 

CH
AP

EL
 R

D

HENDRIX DR

MERLE DR

AN
DE

RS
ON D

R

PARK RD

FAIRFOREST RD

OLD BOILING SPRINGS RD

THARON DR

WES
T A

VE

BRIARCLIFF RD

WISE
 LN

GARNER RD

PERSHING ST

BR
AD

FO
RD

 D
R

SA
LE

M 
ST

NE
EL

Y A
VE

SMYTHE ST

CAMERON DR

UTILITIES RD

MAN
SF

IEL
D DR

EVANS DR

JA
SM

IN
E S

T

WO
OD

CR
EE

K 
DR

SEVEN SPRINGS RD

JA
ME

S 
ST

ZIM
A P

AR
K R

D

LO
W

E 
DR

PA
RR

ISH
 RD

BIRCH LN

GR
EG

OR
Y S

T

ST
RA

TF
OR

D 
RD

CU
DD

 DR

N V
ER

NO
N S

T

COBURN RD

RILEY CT

APPLEWOOD LN

CLEMSON ST

EX
XO

N 
RD

LA
NF

OR
D 

ST

ST
RIBL

ING CIR

E S
HO

RE
 D

R

VERNON ST

OAKWOOD AVE

KE
AT

LY
 ST

N LIBERTY ST

SU
CC

ES
SF

UL
 W

AY

DI
ET

Z D
R MC

KA
Y A

VE

CHURCH LN

BO
Y S

T

PL
UM

E S
T

JEFF DAVIS DR

GO
WE

R R
D

CH
AP

MA
N 

RD

OLD AIRPORT RDADEN ST

OL
D I

RO
N W

ORK
S R

D

PINEVILL
E RD

APOLLO DR

W 
BR

OA
D 

ST

KN
OL

LW
OO

D 
DR

GRAMLING DR

BO
NN

ER
 R

D

UN
ITY

 R
D

HARTWELL ST

LE
ED

S L
N

DEW
EY A

VE

DELRAY DR

FALCON LN

LO
ND

ON
BE

RR
Y D

R

MU
NN

A D
R

MAYVIEW AVE

S 41ST

BU
FF

INGTO
N RD

SILV
ERTON ST

GEDDES RD

ANCHOR ST

ROSS RD

TH
AC

KS
TO

N 
DR

CH
AP

EL
 D

R

FARRAGUT DR

HA
RM

ON
Y D

R

WO
OD

 D
R

GA
TE

S S
T

NELSON AV
E

MADORA DR

HEN
RY ST

RO
SE

 ST

SP
RIN

G 
HIL

L A
VE

CA
RO

LIN
A C

LU
B 

DR

LO
NE

 O
AK

 BL
VD

SK
YV

IE
W 

DR

WH
ITE

 AV
E

WES
TV

IEW
 BL

VD

PRESTON ST

EZ
EL

L S
T

TIP
PE

RA
RY

 LN

N TOWN DR

QUARRY RD

SH
EIL

A L
N

BARBERRY LN

EL
LIO

TT
 ST

SWANSEA RD

BONANZA DR

SH
AD

Y 
LN

EA
GL

ES
 LN

CRYSTAL D
R

NAVAHO DR

FIELDSTONE RD

EUCLID RD

PE
NN

EL
L S

T

MI
LL

ER
 D

R

TW
EE

D 
ST

MA
RC

ON
I D

R

RA
ND

YS
 D

R

ST
AT

E R
D S

 42
 98

56

AL
TA

 VI
ST

A L
N

PR
OSP

ECT A
VE

WE
LL

ES
LE

Y 
DR

EL
MW

OO
D 

DR

WE
LL

S 
DR

CA
TA

WB
A S

T
GA

BL
E C

T

MERLOT CT

ROWE ST

PINCKNEY CT

LOGAN ST

E HAMPTON AVE

MA
RY

LA
ND

QUALIT
Y W

AY

SO
UT

HE
RN

 AV
E

LAT
TIC

E W
AY

FO
RT

UN
E D

R

SE
AY

 LN

LEONA CT

PO
WEL

L M
ILL

 RD

E M
YL

ES
 LN

ANDREWS RD

TE
MP

LE
 ST

JA
Y C

IR

VALE ST

WEDGEWOOD DR

WA
ITE

 AV
E

PIN
E L

AK
E C

T

AD
A L

N

BOOKER BLVD

OL
D S

AL
EM

PHILLIPS DR

SYLVAN DR

KIM
BE

R 
LN

MOHAWK DR

LA
ND

IS 
ST

CO
VE

 R
UN

PU
EB

LO
 ST

AN
DRE L

N

AU
DR

EY
 DR

TW
IN PO

ND DR

CRESTVIEW DR

LEAWOOD DR

RIVIERA DR

HO
LL

Y 
RU

N 
CT

GI
BS

ON
 S

T

AB
BI

E 
LN

FA
IRGROUNDS R

D

CL
AR

EN
CE

 C
IR

WEYMOUTH DR

LA
VE

ND
UL

A S
T

HYDRICK ST

AMELIA
 ST

RO
SS

LIG
ON ST

WOOD LILY LN

RI
VE

R 
RD

FO
RE

ST
 H

ILL
S 

RD

BE
LL

E F
LO

WE
R 

CT

BENTWAY LN

DOVE CT

HA
LS

EY
 AV

E

DARNELL DR

CHARLEVOIX ST
OL

D 
PE

TR
IE

 R
D

STATON DR

PA
RT

NE
RS

 LN

NO
RM

AN
DY

 AV
E

ED
ISO

N C
IR

STATE RD S 42 8015

AN
TH

ON
Y R

D

SWEETIE WAY

STONECREST DR

FLOYD CABIN RD

OAK CREEK DR

ARLO CT

THELMA DR

AL
TA

 D
R

CI
ND

ER
ID

GE
 D

R

DR
AY

MO
NT

 D
R

WRIGHTSON AVE

CO
NIF

ER
 C

IR

SW
ITZ

ER
 ST

BASSWOOD DR

CINDER TER

REGENCY RD

CROSS ST

BOWERS CT

WADSWORTH RD

ME
RI

DE
TH

 C
IR

HUNTWOOD DR

CLYDE ST

PY
LE

 CT

BEVERLY HILLS DR

CO
ND

RE
N A

VE

CAS
E DR

SHAW AVE

GR
EE

N T
RE

E C
T

FO
XBOROUGH RD

SM
ITH

 C
IR

AMELIA AVE

HUDSON ST

LO
OP

 R
D

FA
NN

 C
T

KALE BLVD

SU
GAR

 M
ILL

 LN

IRIS CT

SK
YU

KA
 ST

CA
RL

OW
 C

T

SIM
UE

L R
D

TINDALL ST

NU
RS

ER
Y D

R

RIGBY AVE

DONNA LN

UN
OP

EN
ED

AS
HT

ON
 DR

RIDGEWOOD AVE

GR
EE

NV
ILL

E 
ST

FLINTRIDGE CT

HILLTOP LN

TIMOTHY ST

SENECA CT

SIM
MO

NS
 ST

TIM
BE

RC
RE

EK
 D

R

S 937TH

S CHURCH ST EXD

JO
HN

 B
 W

HI
TE

 SR
 B

LV
D

S FOREST ST

DO
VE

R 
RD

I 8
5 B

US

N PINE ST

RE
ID

VIL
LE

 R
D

S 2
06

TH

S 525TH

I 5
85

S 2
3R

D

S 2
ND

I 26

DO
GW

OO
D 

CL
UB

 R
D

BOILING SPRINGS RD

S 9
6T

H

E M
AIN

 ST

RICE RD

S P
IN

E S
T

PH
ILL

IP
S 

RD

N P
IN

E S
T

S 9
6T

H

S 4
4T

H

S 6
5T

H

I 85

S 5
90

TH

S 605TH

Lin
da

 D
og

an

Ja
n S

ca
lis

i

Ro
be

rt 
Re

ed
er

Je
ro

me
 R

ice
, J

r.

Ca
te 

Br
an

dt 
Ry

ba

W.
 S

ter
lin

g A
nd

er
so

n

Cit
y o

f 
Sp

art
an

bu
rg

Pla
n 3

Dig
ita

l C
art

og
rap

hy
 Se

cti
on

Div
isio

n o
f R

es
ea

rch
 an

d S
tat

ist
ics

SC
 Bu

dg
et 

an
d C

on
tro

l B
oa

rd
10

-5-
20

12
WF

RCC Ro
ad

s
Di

str
ict

s 1 2 3 4 5 6 ´
0

1
0.5 Mi

les



City of Spartanburg Plan 3 Statistics

District Pop Dev. %Dev. NH_WHT %NH_WHT NH_BLK %NH_BLK VAP NHWVAP %NHWVAP NHBVAP %NHBVAP AllOth AllOthVAP
1 6,192 23 0.37% 2,779 44.88% 2,639 42.62% 4,798 2,380 49.60% 1,877 39.12% 774 541
2 6,246 77 1.25% 4,508 72.17% 1,432 22.93% 4,984 3,782 75.88% 988 19.82% 306 214
3 6,156 ‐13 ‐0.21% 1,331 21.62% 4,565 74.16% 4,547 1,096 24.10% 3,279 72.11% 260 172
4 6,162 ‐7 ‐0.11% 4,617 74.93% 1,190 19.31% 4,795 3,774 78.71% 784 16.35% 355 237
5 6,114 ‐55 ‐0.89% 933 15.26% 4,875 79.74% 4,286 811 18.92% 3,299 76.97% 306 176
6 6,143 ‐26 ‐0.42% 2,099 34.17% 3,695 60.15% 4,890 1,974 40.37% 2,678 54.76% 349 238

Total 37,013 16,267 18,396 28,300 13,817 12,905 2350 1578

Digital Cartography Section,  Office of Research and Statistics,  SC Budget and Control Board, 10‐5‐2011, WFR



 
 

X. B  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

  
 



AN ORDINANCE 
 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA 
ZONING ORDINANCE AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE ELEMENT, 
BY AMENDING SECTION 206, CHANGES TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES, 
SPECIFICALLY PARCEL #7-13-01-032.00 – LOCATED ON 1585 EAST MAIN 
STREET, WHICH IS CURRENTLY ZONED LOD WITH A LAND USE DESIGNATION 
OF LIMITED OFFICE DISTRICT TO ZONE B-1 WITH A LAND USE DESIGNATION 
OF NEIGHBORHOOD SHOPPING DISTRICT; AND PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Spartanburg now finds that, upon further review, it is in the 
public interest that the land use designation for the parcel identified on the Official Zoning Map 
of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, dated August 6, 1973, as amended, by changing the 
zone of Lot 032.00 as shown on Spartanburg County Block Map Sheet 7-13-01, from LOD, 
Limited Office District to B-1, Neighborhood Shopping District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this zoning change would be compatible with surrounding land uses and 
neighborhood character, would not be detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare, and, 
further, would be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 16, 2012, at 
which time a presentation was made by staff and an opportunity was given for the public to 
comment on the rezoning request; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after consideration of the staff report, public 
comments, and the criteria set forth in Section 605 of the Zoning Ordinance, subsequently voted 
at that meeting to recommend to City Council that the rezoning request be denied.  City Staff 
received a written request dated August 21, 2012, from the petitioner, Bill Akkary, and agent, 
Craig Jacobs of Spencer Hines Properties, on behalf of property owner National Bank of SC to 
City Council asking for a new public hearing. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Members of Council of the 
City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 
Section 1. Amendment.  That the official zoning map of the City of Spartanburg, as referenced 
by Section 206 of the Zoning Ordinance, be, and the same hereby amended as follows: 
 

 The Lot currently identified as 032.00 on Spartanburg County Block Map Sheet 7-13-01, 
shall be now designated as B-1, Neighborhood Shopping District. 

 
Section 2. Severability.  If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 
be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions thereof. 
 
 
 
 



Section 3. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the City 
Council of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina. 
 

DONE AND RATIFIED THIS ________ DAY OF __________, 2012. 
 
 
 
                                                                                                   __________________________ 
                                                                                                   Junie L. White, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________ 
Cathy H. McCabe, City Attorney 
 
 
___/___/___ (First Reading) 
 
___/___/___ (Second Reading) 
 



          
XI. A  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – SUMMARY REPORT 
 
 
 
 

TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
         
FROM: Jackie Wood, MWBE Coordinator 
      
SUBJECT: Minority & Women Business Enterprise (MWBE) Program Update 
   
DATE: November 7, 2012  
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Staff would like to present its annual report on the accomplishments of the Minority & Women Business 
Enterprise (MWBE) Program.  We are encouraged with overall results of the program.    
   
 
 



 
 

XI. B  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



    MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 

TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council 
       
FROM: Ed Memmott, City Manager 
      
SUBJECT: Swim Center 
   
DATE: November 6, 2012 
 
 
At the November 12 City Council Meeting, staff will make a report on the Swim Center.  This report will 
review facility use, operating costs, and estimated repair costs.   Staff will also review cost savings options 
and alternatives to fund capital repairs.  
  
If the Swim Center is to remain open, Council should expect that it will be necessary to spend 
approximately $2.0 million for major system (roof, HVAC, building envelope, filtration) replacement over 
the next several years.  Adding the capital costs to existing annual operating expenses, Council should 
expect that the City will spend approximately $650,000 annually on the Swim Center for at least the next 
10 years.  
     
Spending $650,000 annually on one recreational facility is a significant financial commitment in the 
context of the City’s budget.  There are many worthy new programs, projects, and/or service enhancements 
that could be funded if the Swim Center was closed.  Staff will be asking Council to confirm that the Swim 
Center is highest priority for the expenditure of those funds prior to undertaking a multiyear commitment to 
repair the facility.              
 


	Business License.Insurance Corp.Ordinance.11.12.12.pdf
	SIC NAICS
	CODE or CODE

	Redistricting.Plan 3.Ordinance.final.11.12.12.pdf
	Plan 3.Stats.pdf
	Sheet1





